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PROCEEDI NGS

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Good norning, |adies and
gentl enmen. |'m Comm ssioner Jerry Fenn. Seated to ny
right is Comm ssioner David Clark. To ny left is
Comm ssi oner John Harvey.

We're conveni ng today as the Public Service
Comm ssion of Utah to hear testinony regarding the post
settlement of Phase |I in Docket Nunmber 25-057-06 in the
matter of the Application of Enbridge Gas Utah to
| ncrease Distribution Rates and Charges and Make Tariff
Modi fi cati ons.

We appreciate you very nuch being here today.
Those of you who are going to testify, we appreciate in
advance your cooperation and the prefiled testinmony that
we' ve received, which we've reviewed.

We' || take appearances for the record. Let's
start with Ms. Clark and the Conpany.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you so nuch. MW nane
is Jenniffer Clark. | am counsel for Enbridge Gas Ut ah,
and | am joined by ny co-counsel, Anne Mtchell of Whitt
Sturtevant. We have with us also Austin Sunmers, who
will be testifying in support of the Settlenment
Stipulation this norning.

And we al so have in the room Kelly Mendenhal

and Jordan Stephenson. Both gentlenen filed prefiled
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direct testinony on Phase | issues. For the
Commi ssion's conveni ence, we have avail abl e by phone
Jenni fer Nelson and Warren Reinisch, who al so offered
prefiled direct testinony on Phase | issues.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Great. Thank you
very much. M. Mendenhall has not yet noved to Toronto,
| guess. You make a special trip back here for this.

Okay. Let's go to the Division of Public
Utilities.

MR. GRECU: Patrick Grecu and Patricia Schmd,
Assi stant Attorneys General for the Division of Public
Uilities. The Division's witness this norning will be
Eric Orton.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Thank you. It's
nice to see you

M. Moore, wll state your appearance.

MR. GRECU: Robert More for the O fice of
Consuner Services. Qur witness today will be Alyson
Anderson. She's sitting next to ne.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

Al right. On the Google Meet, | understand
that the fol ks that are on cannot see us, but | see
M chael Rivera, | guess here for FEA;, is that correct?
Wul d you state your presence and who you're

representing. Can you hear us? Can anyone who is
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j oi ned by Google Meet hear nme? Hello?

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: Well, they may hear us,
but we may not hear them

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: We ought to be able to
hear them right?

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: Yeah, we have to be able
to hear them

PRESIDING OFFICER: So | only see --

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: So we have -- it says
mute there. |Is that for us or for then?

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: It's for us. There we go.
At the very bottom the mcrophone is nuted. Very, very
bottom

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: Across the bottom  You
want to take that nute off.

THE CLERK: Well, we would get feedback.

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: How woul d t hey --

THE CLERK: They can hear us through the
audi o.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Anybody on the
online on Google Meets who can hear nme speaki ng?

MS. NELSON CLARK: Chair Fenn?

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Ronit Barrett is also

counsel for Enbridge Gas Utah, and she has texted and
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i ndi cated she cannot hear you.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. So do we know who
the person -- who's the 801 nunber that ends in 167
THE CLERK: That's us.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ch, that's us. WMaybe |
shoul d know that, but I don't know how I woul d.
THE CLERK: | can try --
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  All right. Now --
COW SSI ONER HARVEY: Ch, yeah. See that?
(Reporter clarification. Discussion held
of f record.)

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Let's go back on the

record. Let's -- M. Rivera, | don't think we were on
the record when we -- go ahead and state who you
represent, M. -- Captain Rivera.

CAPT. RIVERA: Yes, sir. M nane is Captain
M chael A. Rivera. | amrepresenting the Federal
Executive Agencies, and | amfrom Tyndall Air Force
Base.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: And do you have a w tness
that you're proposing to give testinony today?

CAPT. RIVERA: Yes, sir. | am presenting
M. M chael Gorman, who has filed direct evidence --
sorry -- direct testinmony and filed 19 exhibits in the

record and work papers, sir.
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PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Gorman, can you hear
me?

MR. GORMAN: Yes, sir, | can.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. And are you getting
f eedback? Can you hear okay w thout any type of echo?

MR. GORMAN: | am no | onger getting feedback.
The audio is fine.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Geat. All right.

And then co-counsel for Enbridge has
apparently dropped for a season.

MS. NELSON CLARK: She has.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: | woul d have -- can we go
ahead w t hout her?

MS. NELSON CLARK: Yeah, absol utely.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Okay. All right.
Now, we'll go over to -- | forgot you, M. Russell. I
haven't turned that way, but | certainly was aware of
your presence.

MR. RUSSELL: Yes. Thank you. Good norning.

Phillip Russell on behalf of the Utah Associ ation of
Energy Users. UAE' s Phase | witness will be Justin
Bi eber.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. All right. Is
t here anybody el se here representing a party that's not

sitting at counsel table?
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Ckay. Al right. Let's proceed. W're here
to discuss a -- what's been characterized as a bl ack box
settlenment. W have -- we've asked the parties to file
prefiled testinony justifying the terns or the rationale
for the settlenment. Didn't ask you to disclose
confidential negotiations, but we're going to have sone
guestions of those wi tnesses as they describe the terns
of the settlenent.

And | propose that we go in the follow ng
order: W first hear from M. Sumrers fromthe DPU, and
then we'll hear fromM. Oton, and then we'll hear from
Ms. Anderson

And M. -- or, Captain Rivera, is
M. Gorman -- he did not file prefiled testinmony. Are
you intending to have himtestify, or is he here sinply
to answer questions if we have thenf

CAPT. RIVERA: Sir, we were not able -- or
sorry. We -- we were not asked to file any settl enent
testi nony because we were not part of the settlenent.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  That's right.

CAPT. RIVERA: So he was -- he's just here to
answer any questions and to submt our -- his testinmony
into the record.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. We'll have himdo

that. | know we're in the m dst of a governnent
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shutdown. Is it -- does it cause you any hardship if we
have you go after UAE, to go at the end?

CAPT. RIVERA: No, sir. Just -- that doesn't
cause any hardshi p.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. G eat.

CAPT. RIVERA: | appreciate the -- |
appreci ate you guys allowng ne to appear virtually.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ch, sure. Extraordinary
times care -- call for extraordinary renedies. W're
happy to do that.

Okay. So we'll hear then from M. Russell's
W tness, Justin Bieber, and then finally fromthe FEA's
wi t ness, M. Gorman.

Ckay. Let's -- let's proceed forward then,
Ms. Clark. WIIl you call your w tness.

MS. NELSON CLARK: | do have one prelimnary
mat t er.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Ch, sure.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Chairman, if | may.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Pl ease.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Paragraph 21 of the
Settlement Stipulation provides that the stipulating
parties all agree to the adm ssion of Phase | testinony.
So | would nmake a notion, a joint notion, that that

testinony be admtted, and I would enunerate fromthe
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Conpany's side -- because we filed Phase | and Phase |1
t oget her and there's sonme co-mngling, I would -- |
woul d take a nonment to enunerate what we're asking of
you, and | would invite the other parties to enunerate
the exhibits they would Iike admtted.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER: All right. Let's get that
on the record. Please go ahead.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you. The Conpany,
agai n, pursuant to paragraph 21 of the Settl enent
Stipul ati on, would nove for the adm ssion of all Phase |
testinmony. We would nove for the adm ssion of the
Verified Application with acconpanying Appendi x 1, the
direct testinony of Jennifer Nelson. She's an
Exhibit 2 -- and |I'm going out of order, and ||
explain why -- Jennifer Nelson, Exhibit 2, with
acconpanyi ng Exhibits 2.01 through 2.10. The direct
testinmony of Warren Reinisch, Exhibit 3.0, with no
acconpanyi ng exhi bits.

And then with regard to M. Mendenhal |l and
M . Stephenson, they offered testinony to both Phase I
and Phase Il matters. So we would adnmit them solely for
t he purpose of Phase | today. W would nove for the
adm ssion of M. Mendenhall's testinony, which is
Exhibit 1.0 with acconpanying Exhibits 1.01 through
1.07, and M. Stephenson's testinony, which is | abel ed
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as Exhibit 4.0, with acconpanying Exhibits 4.01 through
4.33. And, finally, we would ask for the adm ssion of
the Settlenment Stipulation itself with its Exhibit 1.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Thank you very
much. So we understand that it's l[imted to the
testinony and exhibits that deal with Phase |?

MS. NELSON CLARK: Correct.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Does the Division
want to nake any statenment with respect to the testinony
you' d like admtted and get it on the record?

MR. GRECU. 1'd support that notion.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Are you -- do you
have testinony of your witnesses you' d |like to add?

MR. GRECU: Yes, | would.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: And what testinony -- is

MR. GRECU: It is -- the Division has five
w tnesses that filed Phase | testinony.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Pl ease tell nme who they
are.

MR. GRECU: We have the Phase | direct
testinony of Eric Orton and acconpanyi ng exhi bits DPU
Exhibit 1.01; Phase | direct testinony of Casey J.

Col eman and DPU Exhi bits 2.01 through 2.09; Phase |

direct testinony of Jereny Hirschi and DPU Exhibits 3.01
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t hrough 3.10; the Phase | direct testinony of David
WIlliams with the DPU Exhibits 4.01 through 4.08; and
the Phase | direct testinony of Roxie MCullar and DPU
Exhi bits 5.01 through 5.03.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. And so that
testinmony is all limted to Phase |?

MR. GRECU:. Correct.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. M. Moore?

MR. MOORE: Yes. W nove for the adm ssion of
all our prefiled testinmony: M. Anderson's direct
testinony and her testinmony with regards to the
settl enent and David Garrett's testinony and
acconpanyi ng exhibits, both his testinony on the cost of
capital and his testinony on depreciation.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  All right. GOkay. Thank
you.

M. Russell?

MR. RUSSELL: Yes. UAE had one Phase |
Wi tness. That witness is M. Justin Bieber. His
prefiled direct testinony is | abeled as UAE
Exhibit RR 1.0. The acconpanyi ng exhi bits are UAE
Exhibits RR 1.1 through 1.6, and we also submtted a UAE
direct RR nodel along with M. Bieber's testinony.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  AIl right. Okay. Thank

you.
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Captain Rivera, would you like to nove for the
adm ssion of M. Gorman's testinony?

CAPT. RIVERA: Yes, sir. The Federal
Executive Agencies has the direct testinony and exhibits
of M chael P. Gorman, FEA Exhibits 1.0. The exhibits
are |labeled 1.01 through 1.18.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

CAPT. RIVERA: Into the record. And we do
have one correction.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Pl ease, go ahead.

CAPT. RIVERA: On FEA Exhibit 1.0, instead of
the "United States Air Force," we would |like to correct
that to the "Federal Executive Agencies.” So it reads,
"Direct Testinony and Exhibits of Mchael P. Gorman on
behal f of Federal Executive Agencies.”

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. W have that on the
record now.

Al right. So we've heard a series of -- of
testinony described with the acconpanyi ng exhi bits al
related to Phase | of this docket and may or may not
cone up separate fromand apart fromthe settl enment
testinony which has been filed, but is there any
obj ection to any of the parties for any of that being
adm tted?

MS. NELSON CLARK: No.
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PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. AlIl right. Seeing
no objections, we'll admt all the testinony and
acconpanyi ng exhibits as we've recorded them on the
record into evidence in this case. Thank you.

(Al parties' Phase | prefiled testinony
was admtted into evidence.)

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  All right. Thank you,
Ms. Clark, for that inportant adm nistrative rem nder.
Are you ready now to call your w tness?

MS. NELSON CLARK: [|'Il be delighted to cal
M. Austin Sumrers to the stand.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. M. Summers, if
you'll conme forward please. WII| you raise your right
armto the square.

AUSTIN C. SUMMERS
was called as a wtness, and having been first duly
sworn to tell the truth, testified as foll ows:

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Thank you. You may be
seat ed.

Ms. Cl ark.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. NELSON CLARK:
Q. Good norning, M. Sumrers.
A Good nor ni ng.

Q Coul d you please state your nanme and busi ness
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address for the record.

A Yes. M nane is Austin Summers, and ny
busi ness address is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake
City, Utah.

Q And what position do you hold with Enbridge

Gas Ut ah?
A I"'mthe director of regulatory and pricing.
Q. M. Sumrers, are you the sanme Austin Sunmers

who offered settlenment supportive testinony in this
docket ?
A Yes.
Q And do you adopt the contents of that
testinony as your testinony today?
A Yes.
MS. NELSON CLARK: The Conpany woul d nove for
t he adm ssion of the prefiled settlenent stipulation
testinmony of Austin Sumrers. |It's |abeled as EGU
Exhi bit 8.0.
PRESI DI NG OFFICER: |Is there any objection to
t hat ?
Okay. We'll admt that testinmony and exhibit.
(EGU Exhibit 8.0 was admtted into
evi dence.)
MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you so much.
Q (BY M5. NELSON CLARK) M. Summers, can you
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pl ease summari ze the Settlenent Stipulation and the

Conmpany' s position today?

A. Yes.

Q Thanks.

A. Good norning, Comm ssioners. The purpose of
my sunmary today is going to be twofold. First, | want

to wal k through the key terns of the Settl enent
Stipulation, and then I will sumarize the testinony I
filed that shows that the Settlenment Stipulation is in
the public interest and is just and reasonable in
result. Starting with the Phase | Settl enent
Stipulation, I'mgoing to summari ze paragraphs 9 through
17, which outline the core agreenents reached by the
settling parties.

Par agraph 9 tal ks about how this is a black
box settlenment. This means that while the total revenue
requi renment is agreed upon, the stipulation does not
speci fy individual adjustnents or cost conponents. This
approach allows for flexibility while still ensuring a
fair and reasonabl e outcone.

Par agraphs 10 and 11 say that the settling
parties have agreed to a total revenue requirenent of
$604 mllion based on an average test period ending
Decenber 31, 2026. Inportantly, this agreenment does not

endorse or reject any specific adjustnments proposed in
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testinony, nor does it specify a particular cost of
capital. It sinply reflects a nmutually acceptable total
revenue figure.

Par agraph 12 tal ks about the depreciation
rates. The Conpany submtted a new depreciation study
as required by prior Conm ssion order. For purposes of
settlenent, the settling parties agree that the
Comm ssi on shoul d approve nodified depreciation rates as
proposed by O fice witness David Garrett. These rates
are detailed in Settlenment Stipulation Exhibit 1 and
w Il beconme effective upon Comm ssion approval of the
stipul ation.

I n paragraph 13, the settling parties agree
t hat the Comm ssi on-approved rate of return fromthe
Conmpany' s nost recent general rate case in Docket Number
22-057-03 should be used in the Conpany's infrastructure

rate adjustnment tracker, rural expansion tracker, and

the Wexpro Il agreenent. This ensures consistency
across regul atory mechanisnms until a new rate case is
deci ded.

I n paragraph 14, the settling parties support
the continuation of the rural expansion rate adjustnent
tracker as currently outlined in Section 9.02 of the
Company's tariff. This programrenmai ns unchanged under

t he stipul ation.
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I n paragraph 15, the settling parties agree
that, in future filings, the Conpany will provide a
detail ed overview of project selection and updated
estimates regarding the |ife span of the infrastructure
tracker program This conm tnent enhances transparency
and accountability.

I n paragraph 16, the settling parties agree
that this stipulation does not foreclose any Phase |
issues. In other words, all the argunents and positions
related to Phase Il -- such as cost allocation, rate
design, and tariff nodifications -- remain open for
consi deration and will proceed under the existing
schedul e.

Fi nal ly, paragraph 17 notes that all the
settling parties agree that the Settlenment Stipulation
is in the public interest and that the results are just
and reasonable. M testinony supporting the Settl enment
Stipulation, as | have already summari zed -- or as |I'm
about to sunmmarize -- sorry -- supports this paragraph.

The remai ni ng paragraphs in general -- the
general section are inmportant but are not critical to ny
summary. So | want to just switch gears real quick to
spend a few nonents on the testinony | provided to
support the Settlenment Stipulation.

The settlenent is the product of a thorough
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and inclusive process. All parties, both signatories
and non-signatories, were invited to participate in

di scussions. The Conpany responded to approxi mtely 500
data requests, held technical conferences, and net
regularly with the Division of Public Utilities to
ensure transparency and understanding. This |evel of
engagenent ensured that all parties had the information
needed to eval uate the Conpany's proposals and
contribute neaningfully to the settlenent process.

The process foll owed the guidance of Utah Code
Section 54-7-1, which encourages informal resolution.

By working together, the settling parties narrowed
contested i ssues and allows the Commi ssion to focus on
unresol ved matters. This coll aborative approach
enhanced the regul atory process.

The agreed upon $604 nmillion revenue
requirenent is a mddle ground. It is |lower than the
Conpany's original proposal, and it falls within the
range of outcones supported by testinony fromthe
Division, the Ofice of Consuner Services, UAE, and FEA
This outcone reflects a bal ance between the Conpany's
need to recover costs and the interest of ratepayers.

Wil e the settl enent does not specify each
adj ustnent, the Commi ssion has the tools to evaluate its

reasonabl eness. Using the Conpany's nodel, the
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Comm ssion can simnmulate vari ous conbi nations of return
on equity, capital structure, and different regulatory
adj ustnents. These sinulations show that the

$62 mllion increase is achievable through multiple
reasonabl e paths confirm ng the fairness of the results.

The Conpany has nmade significant capital
investnments since its |last rate case -- investnments that
are necessary for system safety and growmth. While rate
recovery does increase cost for custoners, the
settlement strikes a fair balance. It allows the
Conmpany to operate safely and efficiently, it provides a
reasonable return to investors, and it considers the
financial inpact on custoners.

I nportantly, although settling parties have
different positions and priorities, they reached a
common outcone. This convergence, despite varied
approaches, denonstrates that the settlenment is not only
reasonabl e, but also broadly supported.

So, in sumary, the Settlement Stipulation
reflects: First, a collaborative and transparent
process; second, a bal anced and supportabl e revenue
requi renment; and, third, a result that is fair to both
t he Conpany and its custoners. For these reasons, we
respectfully submt that the settlenent is in the public

interest and is just and reasonable in result, and that
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concl udes ny sunmary.

MS. NELSON CLARK: M. Summers is avail able
for cross-exam nation and al so questions fromthe
Conmi ssi on.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, Ms. C ark.

Let's see if there's questions fromany of the
parties. From M. Gecu?

MR. GRECU. No questions.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Mbore?

MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you,
Conmi ssi oner .

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Russell?

MR. RUSSELL: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Captain Rivera, any
guestions?

CAPT. RIVERA: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  All right. Let's go to
the Comm ssion. [|'Il turn to Comm ssioner Harvey.

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: 1'Il go first?

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: "Il mx it up a bit.

EXAM NATI ON
BY COWM SSI ONER HARVEY:
Q. I"d like to ask a few questions on sonme of the
par agraphs that you covered in your initial remarks, and

they're somewhat general, but the -- the overall theng,
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to warn you in advance, is sort of what happens to the
Company' s books when you have a nunmber that's
approximately $52 mllion different than what you had
pr oposed.

So in ternms of the depreciation accounts, the
changes that happen there are going to be determ ned by
the -- excuse ne -- by the OCS witness's testinony; iIs

that correct?

A That's correct.
Q. Al right. Let's see. In terns of the
tracker programs -- so we have the existing

infrastructure rate adjustnment tracker, the rural
expansion tracker. Is it -- is it just assuned then
that -- for the infrastructure tracker, that any

i ncreases over time would just be governed by the | ast
rate case?

A. Yes. For the -- what the settlenment is trying
to spell out is that in -- in the tariff, there are --
it is specified what the return on equity will be or
what the cost of capital will be on -- on that program
for -- for infrastructure replacenent and for rural
expansion, and it's spelled out at 9.6 percent. And so
for -- since those filings going forward will need a
return on equity nunber, the parties agreed for purposes

of settlenent that just |eaving that at 9.6 percent
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going forward woul d be a reasonabl e sol ution.

Q And that 9.6 is on the unrecovered bal ance in
t hat account?

A The 9.6 is -- is used to calculate the -- the
return conponent of the revenue. And so as a Conpany is
i nvesting capital on -- on, say, a feeder line
repl acenent, where we're out there spending noney on the
capital, and then when we're done building the feeder
i ne replacenent and we go to get revenue coverage for
that, part of the calculation is -- of the -- of the --

of the revenue is going to be how nmuch investnent have

we put in, and it will be nmultiplied by that -- that
return nunber. So it's a -- it's a conmponent of the
revenue that we will be seeking to recover.

Q. So the -- what this paragraph 13 neans then is
not a return on the bal ance that has been spent while
you're waiting to get it into rate base. It's saying
that once it's in rate base, it's going to get a

different rate of return than the rest of the rate base?

A It's going to be -- the -- yeah. The revenue
that we will be requesting to recover will be cal cul ated
using that return conponent. There's -- as we are -- as

we are building a feeder line, for exanple, there is --

the only conponent that we're -- that we're getting --
it's not really a return. It's called an allowance for
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funds used during construction or AFUDC.
(Reporter clarification.)

A. There's -- there's sone -- it's not really a
return or a revenue. It's just a --

Q A carrying charge.

A. -- a carrying type of conponent. And so --
but when -- when we're going to, you know, now that
we' ve col |l ected costs all the way through that
construction of that project, the point of that tracker
is for us to be able to cut down that regulatory |ag and
get revenue before a general rate case.

And so to calculate that revenue, you have to
have a return on -- on that capital that you spend, and
that's why it has to be spelled out; otherw se, there
woul dn't be -- since there is no -- since this is a
bl ack box and there's no equity spelled out, there
woul dn't be any way to cal cul ate those between now and
the next rate case. That's why the parties figured that
9.6, leaving that where it has been for the | ast
several years, was a reasonable way to do that.

Q Yeah. |I'mjust trying to think of the
Company's books. So you'll really have, as we go
t hrough the next few years, the rate effective period,
you'l | have two different categories of rate base,

because the current rate base, by the terns of the
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stipulation, isn't -- doesn't have a specified rate of
return anynore if this is approved; is that correct?

A. Yeah. Wen -- so when -- when we're recording
an asset, it won't have -- there won't be a return
necessarily tied to it because it won't be included in
rate base until the next general rate case. So it wll
be on our books as an -- as an asset, but it won't be --
t he Conpany won't be recovering revenue -- it won't be
earning a return on that -- on that investnent that it
made. So -- so you'll have -- you'll be recording
assets, but any assets outside of a tracker program
won't be earning a return.

Q. Okay. So we've got -- fromny
understanding -- see if |I've got this right.
Essentially, you're going to have three categories in
that sense. You're going to have your existing rate
base, and that doesn't earn a rate of return anynore.

It just says that the result of that existing is that

you get this dollar anount that's in the settlenent?

A Yes. And let me maybe just offer a little bit
of clarification on -- on that, because as we're | ooking
at the revenue anmount that the Conpany is -- is -- we're

proposing in the settlenent, that $604 mllion -- that

is -- there is going to be a return conponent that is in
there. It's just not specified how nuch that wll be.
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It's -- so you can have -- you know, the Conpany is --
is still, I guess, inits rates, collecting enough
revenue to run the Conpany and to have its own costs,
its operating and nmai ntenance costs covered, and it's
al so going to have enough in there for the Conpany to
earn a reasonable return for its investors.

The only thing that's happening in this black

box is that we're not specifying how much that return

wll be. Soin-- in this case, the Conpany could -- if
it manages its costs well, its expenses, then it m ght
be able to earn a higher return on -- on -- on its
investnments. |If it does not manage well, then it's
probably going to earn a lower return on its -- on its

investnments. But it's just not spelled out what the
Company's allowed return is.

| hope that offered sonme clarity, but
there's -- that's kind of the -- the nexus of the bl ack
box -- is that it's -- it's not really going to say how
much the Conpany is going to earn, but the Conpany has
to manage its operations to have a good return.

Now, we will still continue to report what our
actual return on equity is every -- every six nonths
when we file our results of operations. The Commi ssion
and all of the Division and the Ofice will be able to

see what we are actually earning on our -- on our
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equity -- what our actual return on equity would be.
Q. But that -- those reports are going to be
based on whatever the Conpany says its books are. It's

not going to be based on anything the Conm ssion has
deci ded; right?

A. Right. There won't be necessarily a
conparison -- like a nunber to conpare it to. Right now
when we file those reports, we say that the all owed
return on equity was 9.6, and our actual return on
equity was at 9.5 or 9.4, whatever we actually earned
at, and that kind of gives the regulators an opportunity
or conparison to show what -- you know, if we're maybe
over-earning. And they won't have that conparison
anynore, but they will still be able to see what the
actual return on equity is and whether or not they think
that that's a reasonable return for us to be earning.

Q. But -- but in ternms of any of the adjustnents
that parties have proposed that m ght have changed those
accounts, because the settlenent doesn't address any of
them none of those will be reflected. It wll just be
what ever the Conpany's position was?

A That's correct.

Q. Okay. So that's the first category. The
second category then would be what's been spent in one

of the trackers that is then conpl eted construction
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moved into the invested category, | guess we'd say. And
| guess that would be tracked at the 9.67

A That's correct.

Q. And then the third category would be the
AFUDC; is that right?

A. Yes. Acronyns.

Q Yeah. First thing | was thinking of -- | was
t hi nking of the Health and Human Services. It's very
simlar.

And that just gets the approved carrying
charge from previ ous orders?
A So the AFUDC would be -- would be rolled in
when we cone to apply for a tracker -- that AFUDC woul d
be rolled into the cost of the project, and it would get
that 9.6 percent.
Q So is the approved rate for a carrying charge
9.6, or is it sonething el se?
A. So there's two different things. The return
on equity is a 9.6 --
Q Ri ght .
A -- percent return, and that's used to
cal cul ate the overall cost of capital when you conmbine
it with debt and everyt hing.
When we're tal king about carrying charges that

we use to apply, like, an interest to a bal ancing
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account and the various 191 accounts, that -- that is a

different rate altogether and doesn't really app

anything in the tracker prograns, either the

y to

infrastructure tracker or the rural expansion. There

are no real balancing accounts for those prograns

Q And so all of the charges at whatever s
are going to be the 9.6. That's what you're talk
about ?

A Right. It's the -- it's the weighted c
capital, but that return, that 9.6 percent, is --

nunber that's used in that cal cul ation.

Q Ckay. Right, right. So it's not -- yo
not getting equity fromthat. You're getting the
wei ghted cost?

A. The wei ghted cost, right.

Q Ckay. Al right. Al right. And then

t age

i ng

ost of

is the

u're

the --

the Wexpro essentially gets to continue using that rate

inits calculations when it prepares its bill that it

gives to Enbridge?

A Yes, yes. That's the rate that Wexpro
use for calculating the operator's service fee.
also if Wexpro conmes in for a new application, if
got a new property, that 9.6 percent is the -- is
the rate that they're using in their -- their hur

cal cul ati on.

will
It's
t hey
the --
dl e
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Q Ckay. So thinking about the infrastructure
tracker, the rural expense tracker, and | guess the
operator/servicer fee, how -- how nuch of that 604 is
represented by those three categories, just roughly?

A. The -- so there's -- | just to want nake sure
that 1"mclear on the question and that |'m expl aini ng

the thing that you want expl ai ned.

Q Sure.
A. So -- so let me just make sure I'm-- |'m
saying this right and that | understand the question.

When -- when we file that $604 million, that
i ncludes investnent that we have -- that we have
forecasted through the end of '25 and then through 2026.
So that is -- that's everything frommin |line, service
lines, pickup trucks, all of that investment that we
plan to add between 2025 and '26 is included in that
$604 mllion.

What the tracker prograns are going to do
is -- and there is -- just to go back, on that
$604 mllion, there is sone feeder |ine expansion in
there, and there is some rural expansion investnent in
that $604 mllion. But what the trackers will do is,
after we have spent that noney or after we have
continued to invest in that infrastructure replacenent

and that rural expansion, there's a point where we wl|
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spend past the anmount that is already in that

$604 mllion, and that's when the trackers will -- wll
start to collect costs on top of that 604, and we would
cone in for an increnental revenue request that is
beyond that 604.

So there is -- to answer your question,
think it's in M. Mendenhall's testinony, and | can pul
that up if you want ne to tell you how much is in -- how
much i nvestnment we've got included already for -- that's
included in that $604 m |l lion, but M. Mendenhall has an
exhi bit that shows that.

Q Shows that. | can look that up. That's al
right.

Al right. So with respect to paragraph 16,
the no inpact on Phase Il issues, if sonmething came up
in Phase Il and the Conmm ssion said we're doing a
di sal | owance or sonething, does that change the 6047

A Yes. Well, it depends on how you | ook at that
because it -- | think that M. Bieber has a paragraph in
his testinony supporting a settlenment that he kind of

wal ks through that. The 604 is the agreed upon nunber,

but if you -- if you use their -- that particular

Phase Il adjustnment, it would -- it would change the

billing determ nates such that it's a different revenue

increase. Rather than 62, it's like $60.8 mllion to
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still get to that $604 mllion.

And | think that that's sonething that, when
we nmet with the parties and we signed the Settl enent
Stipulation, all of us understand that -- that that's a
ri sk that the Conpany is at -- the Conpany is |ooking
at. That if we lost that, then -- that that $62 mllion
woul d be a different nunmber, but | think we all just
agreed that we would litigate that in Phase I1.

Q. And so things like the rate spread, the cost

allocation -- all of those things that are up for
Phase Il -- those aren't affected by the settlenment?
A. No, no. They're all standal one issues.
Al right. | think that's all the questions I

have. Thank you.
A Great. Thanks.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Let's turn to
Conmi ssi oner Cl ark.
EXAM NATI ON
BY COW SSI ONER CLARK:
Q | just have a couple of questions that follow
up on your responses to Conm ssioner Harvey.
Early in your responses, | thought | heard you
say that the Conpany would not earn a return on its rate
base that's not associated with trackers. And | think,

t hough, later, you clarified that nore to nean that
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the -- you could not identify precisely what the rate of

return would be on the rate base at this time because of

the -- the absence of specific values for the various
categories of -- of rate base expense being in the -- in
the stipulation; is that -- is that correct?

A Yeah. The -- | want to nmke sure | understand
again or -- so that I'mnot |eading us further down the
wrong hole here. |s the question that you're asking
about how the return will be cal culated on that
$604 mllion that's -- that's in rate base in this case
that we're -- we're setting a revenue requirenment for

right now? Yeah. So --

Q. That's ny -- yeah. That's my questi on.

A. Yes. And that's -- that's a great question,
and the answer is that it's going to -- we will -- we
wll be able to cal cul ate what our actual return on
equity is. \What we will not have is a -- | don't
know -- | guess a baseline conpari son nunber to conpare
t hat to.

Q Ri ght .

A So it will -- 1 think there's still plenty of
information to -- that will be reported that will give

everybody confort on if we are over-earning or
under-earning or what, but there just won't be that

metric to conpare it to.
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Q Ri ght. Thanks. And ny question was probably

confusing, but | really just wanted to make sure | was
clear that -- that what | had heard initially -- that
you woul dn't earn any return on your rate base -- was

not what you neant to say?

A. Right. That's correct. We will earn -- there
is -- thereis -- in that $604 mllion is a return
conponent, but it's just not specified how much that is.

Q. And so let me just ask you to assune that
you -- your actual spending is at the |levels that you
initially proposed in your application. Wat would that
mean with respect to your return on equity?

A. So our spending -- our capital budget is stil
t he sane as what we proposed in our original. [It's just
that we will be earning -- there will be | ess revenue
comng in. So our return on that investnment wll be
| ower than what we had originally proposed.

That's the interesting thing about this black
box approach -- is that all of the parties have
different objectives, | guess, during the settl enment
di scussions. There were sone who wanted a | ower return
on equity, but they were maybe willing to have a
hi gher -- you know, fewer adjustnents on the revenue.
There were sone parties that were nmaybe wanting to have

a higher return on equity, but they wanted -- but that

Page 36

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-Utah@veritext.com 801-746-5080




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O »h W N P O © O N O O M~ W N Rk O

Public Hearing - October 22, 2025

woul d mean that we were willing to accept nore
regul atory adjustnents.

But each of the parties -- you know, we
couldn't quite come up with what those nunbers shoul d
be, and that's why -- but we were close. You know,
we're | ooking at overall nunmbers, saying, you know,
we're all in the ballpark of the same revenue -- overal
revenue nunber, and that's what ultinmately is used to
set rates for customers.

So when -- when we were tal king about it, it
just made sense that we didn't have to spell that out
for it to be a reasonable result. W could agree on a
revenue nunber, and the rest of that stuff is just
details that don't have to be spelled out for it to be a
reasonabl e result.

Q Thank you.
A. Absol ut el y.
COW SSI ONER CLARK: That concl udes ny

guestions, Chair Fenn.

EXAM NATI ON
BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER
Q M. Sumrers, thank you for responding to the
guestions. | just -- | want to just namke sure that we
have on the record -- I'"'mgoing to attenpt to summari ze
the -- at least as | understand, and you correct ne if
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you disagree with this -- what | view as sone of the
concessi ons or conprom ses that have been made by EGU.
So you originally sought a total revenue

requi rement of $657 mllion in your verified
application; that's correct?

A That's correct.

Q. And you settled on a $604 mllion revenue
requirement ?

A That's correct.

Q. And you originally thought that there was a --

woul d be a $414.7 million revenue deficiency; is that
correct?

A That's correct.

Q And you settled on a $62 nmillion increase or

addition to the revenue requirenent?

A. That's right.

Q. Okay. W thout your changes that you had
requested, | believe your verified application indicated
that if there were no changes made, no relief granted to

i ncrease the revenue requirenent, that you would be only

earning a return on equity of 5.55 percent; is that
correct?

A | believe that's correct.

Q. Okay. In your verified application, you

sought a return of 10.6 percent; is that correct?
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A. Correct, that's right.

Q. Okay. And without a specific nunber because
of the black box settlenent being stated today, you
woul d agree with ne that it's -- that the anount is
significantly less than the 10.6 that was requested in
your original verified application?

A. And that's where -- and that's where it's a

tricky thing because we didn't -- there wasn't an agreed
upon nunber on the return on equity. | knowif we were
to -- if we were to have litigated this, you'd still be

seeing the Conpany's original proposal in front of you,
and that's what we would be litigating.

The -- | -- you know, it's interesting to --
to be up here and to hear these questions, because |
think, in ny case, I -- I'man accountant by background,
and | want nunbers that support what |I'm | ooking at.
That's how | get confort in knowing that sonething is a
reasonable result. And | know -- | know at | east
Comm ssi oner Harvey, from our past dealings, he likes
nunmbers as well, and he |likes that confort that cones
frombeing able to see it in a spreadsheet. And |'|
admt that when we first started talking with the other
parties, the settling parties, that | had sone of that
sanme di sconfort, going, you know, how am| going to be

able to justify this?
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But as | -- as | looked at the -- at the
direct testinony of the other parties, where their
positions were at, conpared it to our positions, and
ki nd of | ooked at, you know, what we thought, maybe we
would win, what we mght lose. It my have been a | ower
cost of equity. Sone of the adjustnments we coul d have
won, but in the end, the -- the overall increase of
$62 mllion comng in at that $604 mllion revenue
requi rement was a reasonable result.

It's -- do | think | could have got higher?

Yeah, maybe, but there's that give and take with any

settl enent, any negotiations, that in the end, just |ike
all of the other parties, | think it's a just and
reasonable result. It's in the public interest. It
protects the interest of our shareholders. It protects

the interest of custoners, and | think that it's --
So | guess ny -- that was a |long answer to a
short question, but | think ny answer is that | -- |I'm

not ready to say that it would have been a | ower return

on equity, because there may have been -- if it had been
litigated, we would have still pushed for the original
equity.

Q | understand -- | understand if it had been
litigated that you would have pushed for that. |'m

aski ng, based upon the fact that you settled for al nost
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hal f of what you -- of the revenue requirenent increase,
going from$114.7 mllion to $62 nmillion increase, that
would in -- would reflect a different ROE?

A I will go ahead and agree with you on that.
It woul d have been a lower return on equity. As | was
| ooking at it, something that was reasonable, | think it
woul d have been a |lower return on equity -- would have
been part of my reasonabl eness check.

Q And you caused to be filed EGQU Exhibit 8.01,

whi ch had an adj ustment adm nistrative -- or excuse
me -- an adjustnment matrix; is that your exhibit?
A Yes.

Q. Okay. And so you see there different

scenarios with ROEs ranging from9.50 to 9.00; is that

correct?

A That's correct.

Q. Okay. | have another question with respect to
your -- your application. 1In your application, you

reflected using an actual capital structure of

53 percent equity and 47 percent debt. In your
settlenent, with respect to at | east the other three
categories that we tal ked about previously -- the
Wexpro, the infrastructure replacenent adjustment, and
the rural expansion rider -- that reflects a | ower

capital structure, as far as a | ower percent of equity,
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53 to 51 percent; is that correct?
A. Yep. And -- and that's for purposes of
settl enent.

Q Correct.

A And that's where we canme in and said we don't
want to try to adjust that nunmber. Didn't want it to be
sonet hing that we would -- that would slow down the

settl enent process.

Q. Al right.

A So going forward, yes, those would still stay
that 51 percent capital structure.

Q But your verified application indicated your
actual capital structure was 53 percent equity; is that
correct?

A. It is at 53 percent equity. And going
forward, the Conpany proposes -- the Conpany will still
manage its equity at that 53 percent. | think that's a
healthy | evel of equity thickness for the Conpany to be
at, and that's where we will man -- continue to manage
our Conpany at.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. All right.
Comm ssi oner Harvey has a foll ow up question.
FURTHER EXAM NATI ON
BY COWM SSI ONER HARVEY:

Q And I"msorry to be out of order here, but in
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paragraph 13, the very |ast clause of the | ast sentence,

it says, in any future Conmm ssion orders prior to
the effective date of the next rate case calling for the
use of a Comm ssion-allowed return in calculating costs
or rates.”

Qbviously that's an attenpt to bind the
Commi ssion. |Is it your opinion that that does bind the
Comm ssion or the Comm ssion can change the wording in
its order to avoid that restriction?

A | just to want read the paragraph real quick.
It was 137

Q Yeah. [It's talking about the trackers and
Wexpro Il and then any future Comm ssion orders.

A. So | think that's a -- that's a key part of
the Settlenment Stipulation, and the point of that
paragraph is just to say -- | don't -- it's -- | think
it's to give the Conm ssion a solution. | don't -- |
don't think that we were attenpting to bind the
Commi ssion to anything. It's just so that we can
continue the infrastructure replacenent, we continue the
rural expansion, we continue the Wexpro devel opment and
have sonething spelled out so that there was sonething

there to use for the cal cul ati on.

I think that if -- if the Comm ssion were to
change that |anguage, | think that's sonething that
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the -- that would then apply to -- one sec --

paragraph 24 that talks about if there's a materi al
change that the settlenent -- that the -- that any of
the settling parties "may withdraw fromit if it is not
approved wi thout material change or condition by the
Commi ssion or if the Conm ssion's approval is rejected
or materially conditioned by a review ng court."”

So | think that's sonmething that | -- | don't
know i f | have an exact answer for you, but | think that
|'d have to go back and talk with ny managenent to come
up with a plan.

Q | didn't ask it as well as | should have. |
didn't nmean change the stipulation. Wat | nmeant is in
a future Conmm ssion order. So | guess it's a two-part
guestion. One, what -- what things besides these
three-naned itens -- the two trackers and Wexpro --
could this apply to?

And then the second part of the question is,
if the Conmi ssion didn't like 9.6 applying to sonething,
could it sinply specify the wording in that future order
that this is the actual rate of return rather than
defaulting to this?

A | think when we're tal king about until the
next -- until the next order, what we' re tal king about

is until the next rate case. Yeah, the next effective
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date of the next rate case. | -- |'mnot aware of
anything el se that would have that number applied to it
for -- for purposes of ratenaking.

We did -- you know, we tal ked about that with
all of the other parties and, you know, went through the
tariff, made sure there were no other issues that we
need that nunber. But | -- and from-- | guess from ny
viewpoint, | just don't see that the Conm ssion would
need to change anything in the future, like rural
expansi on program infrastructure rate program | think
we've -- the parties have all agreed that it's a
reasonabl e nunber to use going forward for the next
few years.

Q So the settlenent applies to Phase | and
future proceedings in these three areas?

A That's correct.

Q. Okay. Thank you. That -- that is now all ny
gquestions. Sorry.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay, M. Summers. You
may be excused.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you for your
t esti nony.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Nothing nore fromthe

Conpany. Thank you.
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PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Thank you.
M. Grecu fromthe Division.

MR. GRECU. Thank you. The Division calls

M. Eric Oton.

us today.

was cal |

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Wel conme, M. Orton.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you for being with
Can you raise your right armto the square.
ERI C ORTON

ed as a witness, and having been first duly

sworn to tell the truth, testified as foll ows:

seat ed.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Thank you. You may be

Go ahead, M. Grecu.
MR. GRECU: Thank you.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR, GRECU:

Q
A.

Q

Good norning, M. O'ton.
Good norni ng.

Coul d you pl ease and state and spell your nane

for the record.

A.
Or-t-o-n.

Q

A

My name is Eric Orton. It's E-r-i-c

And by whom are you enpl oyed?
The Ut ah Division of Public Utilities.
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And what is your business address?
160 East 300 South, here in Salt Lake.

What is your position at the D vision?

> O > O

["'ma utility technical consultant.

Q And have you participated in this docket on
behal f of the Division?

A | have.

Q Did you review the Conpany's application,
anmended -- oh, excuse nme -- the Conpany's application,
supporting exhibits, and prefiled testinony along with
all the other parties' testinony?

A Al of them

Q Did you also review the Phase | Settl enment
Stipulation and the attached exhibit, EGJ Phase |
Settlement Stipulation Exhibit 1, filed in this docket?

A. | did.

Q Did you al so prepare and cause to be filed
your testinony in response to the Comm ssion's notice
| ssued Oct ober 1st, 2025, which was filed on
Oct ober 15th, 20257

A. Yes.

Q And do you adopt the contents of that
testinony as part of your testinony today?

A Yes, sir.

MR. GRECU: |'"d like to npbve to adm t
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M. Oton's Phase | testinony in response to the
Conmi ssion's notice issued Cctober 1st, 2025.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Wt hout objection, the
testinony is admtted and the exhibit as well.
(Testinmony of Eric Orton filed on
10/ 15/ 25 was admtted into evidence.)
MR. GRECU. Thank you.

Q. (BY MR GRECU) M. Oton, is it the
Division's position that the Settlenent Stipulation --
Stipulation resolving the Phase |I issues is just and
reasonable in result?

A Yes, it is.

Q. Based upon your know edge and experience with
t he Division, would approval of the Settl enment

Stipulation be just, reasonable, and in the public

i nterest?
A. It would be.
Q And do you have a summary to share supporting

approval of the Settlement Stipul ation?
A | do.
Q Pl ease proceed.
A. Thank you.
The purpose of ny testinony today is to
provi de the reasons why the Division supports Conm ssion

approval of the Phase | Settlenent Stipulation filed on
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Sept enber 26t h, 2025.

On May 1, 2025, Enbridge filed its general
rate case application, requesting a total revenue
requi rement of $657 mllion. |In accordance with the
scheduling order in this docket, the Division and ot her
parties filed direct testinony addressing certain issues
in this Phase I of the Conpany's general rate case.
Soon after, the parties began settlenent discussions.

Through these armi s | ength negoti ati ons,
Enbri dge, the Division, the Ofice of Consuner Services,
and the Utah Association of Energy Users -- or, in other
words, the stipulating parties -- reached an agreenent
that is reflected in the Phase | Settlenment Stipulation.
That is the subject of this proceeding. |In addition,
the stipulating parties filed additional testinony in
response to the Conm ssion's Cctober 1, 2025, noti ce.
No party opposes this stipulation.

The stipulating parties have agreed on a total
revenue requirenment anount of $604 million and certain
i ssues outlined in the stipulation. Except for the
stipul ated depreciation rates, this stipulation does not
i nclude acceptance or rejection of any party's
recommendati on, specify cost of capital figure, or
i ndi cate that any specific revenue requirenment issue be

i ncl uded or excluded fromthe total revenue requirenent.
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In addition to the total revenue requirenent,
the stipulating parties agree that:

One, the Comm ssion shoul d approve new
depreciation rates as presented in the direct testinmony
of the O fice of Consuner Services's w tness David
Garrett and provided as Phase | Settlenment Stipulation,
Exhi bit 1.

Two, the Conm ssion shoul d approve the
conti nued use of the Comm ssion-allowed rate of return
established in the 2022 general rate case, Docket Number
22-057-03, as the pretax rate of return referenced in
Enbridge's infrastructure, rate adjustnent tracker, the
rural expansion rate adjustnment tracker, and as the rate
of return applied to the Wexpro |l agreenents.

Three, the Comm ssion should approve the
continuation of the rural expansion rate adjustnment
tracker.

Four, the Conpany will provide a detailed
overview of how it selects projects for the
infrastructure tracker program and updated estimates of
the life of the program

And, five, the stipulation does not foreclose
any issues related to the Phase Il of this rate case.

Settlement of matters before the Conm ssion is

statutorily encouraged. Under Utah Code Section 54-7-1,
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t he Conm ssion nmay approve and adopt the settl enent
proposal if a Conmm ssion finds that a settlenent is just
and reasonable in result and the evidence in the record
supports the Conm ssion's finding.

The Division has carried out an extensive
i nvestigation and anal ysis of the Conpany's revenues and
expenses presented in this case, conducted consi derable
di scovery to obtain the needed information, and reached
t he conclusions presented in its testinony based on its
anal ysis of this information.

While the parties may not agree on each
revenue requirenment conponent, the Division determ ned
that the stipulated total revenue requirenment results in
custoner rates that are just, reasonable in result, and
in the public interest. Based on its evaluation of the
evi dence presented in this proceeding and the ternms and
conditions of the stipulation, the Division concludes
that the stipulation is just and reasonable in result
and |l eads to just and reasonable rates for Utah
rat epayers, and approval of the stipulation is in the
public interest.

That concl udes ny sunmary. Thank you.

MR. GRECU. Thank you.

The witness is avail able for cross-exam nation

and questions fromthe Conm ssion.
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PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Thank you.
Ms. Cl ark?
MS. NELSON CLARK: No questions fromthe
Company. Thanks.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. M. Russell?
M. Moore?
MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Captain Rivera?
CAPT. RIVERA: No questions. Thank you.
PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  AIl right. Let's turn to
Comm ssioner Clark. See if he has questions.
COW SSI ONER CLARK: | don't have any
guestions. Thank you, M. Oton.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Let's turn to
Commi ssi oner Harvey.
EXAM NATI ON
BY COW SSI ONER HARVEY:
Q Good norni ng.
A Good norni ng.
Q You were here in the roomwhile |I had a
conversation with the Conpany's w tness?
A | was.
Q. Based on that conversation, do you have any
clarifications to any of ny questions you'd want to add?

A. | don't renmenber all of them but there is one
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point that | felt | could clear up, and that is that the
Conpany is allowed to collect $604 mllion in 2026. O
the -- the conponents that sumto that are the tracker
and the rural expansion, and they're allowed to earn
that 9.6 on those two. Those are subsets of the 604.
So they will not be -- according to the stipulation,
they will not be allowed to earn over the 604 and w ||
make the rest of their expenses in line with that
anount .

Q. Al right. Thank you. | appreciate that
clarification.

Al right. Do you have the testinony in
support of the track -- of the stipulation that you
submtted with you?

A. Yes, | do.

Q You have a table on lines 182 and 183.

A MM hmm

Q Sort of between those two nunbers, | guess.
just want to nake sure | understand the intent of this
table and what it neans. So if I'mlooking at the very
first line of nunbers, the second |ine of the table,
that -- that reflects EGU s ask in its initial filing;
is that correct?

A That's right.

Q And then the depreciation adjustnment is |listed
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as a negative nunber. That represents the settlenent
agreed anmount that is being renmoved fromthe initial ask

essentially?

A Whi ch line was that again?
Q The depreciation adjustnent.
A. The depreciation represents the nunmber from

the Office's wtness.

Q. And that's what's accepted in the stipulation;
correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Thanks.

And then the other two lines of adjustnents to
that nunber reflect different ways that the adjustnent
coul d be made between ROE and this unspecified black box
adj ustnent. And dependi ng how we tweak those two
numbers, we get the rates of return that are listed in
this table?

A. That's what it's intended to show, yes.

Q. Okay. So if | was |ooking at the first columm
of nunmbers, the one that's associated with a 9 percent
ROE and a 6.77 wei ghted average cost of capital -- that
colum --

A Yes, sir.

Q. If -- if I reduced the black box adjustnent

even nore and rai sed the ROE adjustnent, that would
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| ower the 9 percent; right?

A If you increased the ROE and | owered the black
box?

Q. So if -- say |I -- say | took the black box
adjustnent to 0, that would require ne then to increase
t he amount of ROE adj ust nent?

A That's right. Mthematically, that would
happen.

Q Okay. So if -- and if | did that, that would
be saying we're not making any adjustnents to the
Company's filing except an ROE adjustnent and the
depreci ation adjustnent; is that correct?

A. You' d have to do it that way, yeah

Q | nmean, if that's what | wanted to do, that's
what | would have to do to this table?

A. Ri ght .

Q And that would result in a nunber that's a
fair bit below 9 percent?

A Ri ght .

Q Okay. And then if you went to the opposite
end of the table and made no adjustnment to the ROE, so
you made that 20 -- negative 20 mllion -- al nost
21 mllion -- zero that nade the black box adjustnment
the total value, that would result in the 10-point --

was it 7 that they asked for originally?
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A. Ri ght .
Q Well, | guess it wouldn't be, because it'd
have the 12 -- it'd have the depreciation. So it'd be a

bit Iess than --

A. Ri ght -- but your math is right.

Q Actually, it'd be even nore than 10; right?
I f you add the depreciation up because it'd be a snaller
rate base --

A Smal | er than theirs.

Q. Okay. Al right. So if you took the
extremes, the table would go from 8.8 sonething up to
10.7-ish, 10.8-ish if you added those two extrene
col ums?

A. That's about right.

Q. Okay. Thanks. Al right. Switching topics
back to an earlier question that | asked M. Summers.
Aside fromthe two trackers and the Wexpro, are you
aware of any other accounts that the stipulation
could -- this 9.6 in the stipulation could apply to in
t hese future Conm ssion orders that it seens to
reference?

A. "' m not aware of any. However, | do think I
shoul d point out for the Wexpro Il, dollars would run
t hrough the 191 account as a gas cost. So it wouldn't

really be general rate case issues.
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Q Right. And that's -- and the thing is -- you
point out in your testinony -- that's a return to
Wexpro, not a return to the Conpany; right?

A. Correct.

Q Okay. | think that's all the questions |
have. Thank you.

A Thanks.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER: M. Otton, | don't have
any questions for you. You may step down.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Chai rman Fenn, | wonder if
| mght ask M. Oton a clarifying question or two.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: You may.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you so nuch.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. NELSON CLARK:

Q M. Oton, sorry to keep you on the stand. |
just want to make sure we have a clear record.

A. You' re good.

Q So | want you to recall the conversation you
recently -- you just had with Conm ssioner Harvey about
the trackers and --

A. Okay.

Q -- the 9.6 percent return.
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A MM hmm

Q. Do you renenber that conversation?

A | tried to.

Q. | was wondering if we could clarify what is
included in the $604 mllion revenue requirenent.

A Good.

Q Wul d you agree with me that the first year of
tracker expenses are included in that 604 mllion?
A Yes. No nore than.
(Reporter clarification.)
Q (BY MS. NELSON CLARK) Would you al so agree
that sonetinme after 2026, the Conpany is likely to cone

in to seek interimcost recovery for additional tracker

expenses?

A. I woul d expect that.

Q Wul d you agree with ne that those expenses
from 2026 that are included in the 604 mllion would

have no stated return, but those sought thereafter would
have the 9.6 state of return. |Is that your
under st andi ng?

A That's what | understand. That's right.

Q Thank you. | have no other questions.
A. Thanks for the clarification.
EXAM NATI ON

BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:
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Q Is that true for the other categories as
well -- that they --
A. The rural as well?

Q. Yes, that during the test year, they would
have no stated return; is that correct?
A. It's up to the 604.
Q Yeah, up to the 604.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. All right. Okay.
Anybody el se have any ot her questions?
Al right. Thank you.
MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you.
PRESI DI NG OFFICER: M. Orton, you can step
down. Thank you very nuch.
Al right, M. More, we'll turn to you
MR. MOORE: The Office -- the Ofice of
Consuner Services calls Alyson Anderson to the stand and
ask that she'd be sworn.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Anderson, wel cone.
Woul d you raise your right armto the square.
ALYSON ANDERSON
was called as a witness, and having been first duly
sworn to tell the truth, testified as foll ows:
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Thank you very nuch. Be
seat ed.

M. Moore?
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. MOORE
Q Coul d you pl ease state your nanme, occupation

and busi ness address.

A "' m Alyson Anderson. What was the second --
' m sorry.

Q Your occupation.

A Oh, I"'ma utility technical consultant with

the O fice of Consunmer Services, and my busi ness address
is 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah.

Q In your capacity as a utility technical
consul tant, did you participate in the proceedings in
Phase | of this docket?

A | did.

Q. On August 26th, 2025, did you prepare and

cause to be filed direct testinony in Phase | of this

docket ?
A | did.
Q. Do you have any changes you'd like to nmake to

the testinony at this tinme?

A No.

Q In your capacity as a utility consultant, did
you participate in the discussions and negoti ations that
led to the Settlement Stipulation that is the substance

of this hearing?
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A | did.
Q. Have you reviewed the final stipulation that
has been filed with the Conm ssion?
A | have.
Q On QOctober 15, 2025, did you prepare and cause
to be filed testinmony in support of the Settl enent
Sti pul ation?
A Yes.
Q. Do you have any changes you'd like to nmake to
your testinmony at this tine?
A No.
MR. MOORE: | believe we had stipulated to
the -- her -- the adm ssion of her testinony.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  It's already been
adm tted, yes.
MR. MOORE: Yes.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: That's correct.
Q (BY MR MOORE) Have you prepared a statenent
summari zing the OCS' s position regardi ng whether the

Comm ssion shoul d approve the stipulation as witten?

A | have.
Q Pl ease proceed.
A Good norning. |'mhere today as a witness on

behal f of the O fice of Consuner Services, or OCS, in

support of the submtted Settlenment Stipulation that
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resol ves Phase | of this docket.

Initially, I would note that the settling
parties agree on a total revenue requirenent, and this
settl enent should not be deened precedential with
respect to how cost of capital or other revenue
requi rement issues are considered in the future. The
settling parties present a black box settlenment with
only the final revenue requirement and certain other
i ssues specifically outlined as necessary.

The OCS supports the Settlenment Stipulation --

excuse nme -- and agrees that Enbridge Gas Utah, or EQGU,
w |l be granted a distribution non-gas revenue

requi rement of 604 mllion, which represents an increase
of 62 mllion, that new depreciation rates will be set

as nmodified by the OCS witness David Garrett, and EGU

wi Il continue to use the current authorized rate of

return calculations within the infrastructure rate

adj ustnent tracker and the rural expansion rate

adj ustnent tracker, as well as the rate return -- the

rate of return applied to the Wexpro |l agreenent.
While the Settlenent Stipulationis a

conprom se of conpeting positions, the OCS nmust ensure

that the settled results are in the interest of the

custoner classes it represents. During the OCS review,

| assessed the strengths and weaknesses of the various
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potential adjustnments to the revenue requirenment
presented in the testinony and ot her evidence in the
record and determ ned a range of reasonabl eness and
li kely outcomes. The settled revenue requirenent falls
within that reasonable range and, therefore, is just and
reasonable in result.

| recommend that the PSC find, on the basis of
the evidence in the record, that the Settl enent
Stipulation is in the public interest and just and
reasonable in result. Therefore, | respectfully --
respectfully request that the settl enent be approved,
and this concludes ny statenent.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Thank you,
Ms. Anderson.

MR. MOORE: Ms. Anderson is now avail able for
cross and questions fromthe Conmm ssion.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Mbore.

Ms. Clark, do you have questions?

MS. NELSON CLARK: No, | don't. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. M. Gecu?

MR. GRECU. No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Russel | ?

MR. RUSSELL: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Captain Rivera, any

questions for you?
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CAPT. RIVERA: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Al'l right. Let's turn to
Comm ssi oner Cl arKk.

COW SSI ONER CLARK: | don't have any
gquestions, but thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  All right. Commi ssioner
Har vey?

EXAM NATI ON

BY COWM SSI ONER HARVEY:

Q. Good norni ng.

A Good nor ni ng.

Q You were here in the room during ny
interactions with the previous two witnesses; is that
correct?

A Correct.

Q And | assunme you were paying attention to our

i nteracti ons?

A. Il was -- | was trying to.

Q Okay. Very good.

A | don't guarantee anything.

Q | just wanted to give you the same opportunity

that | gave M. Orton. Are there any clarifications
based on those interactions | had with the other two
w tnesses that you would like to make fromthe Ofice's

per spective?
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A | don't believe there is.

Q Okay. Very good. Thank you.

A. | benefit frombeing the third one.

Q. Al right. Gven that the stipulation adopts
the O fice's depreciation adjustnments, |'d like to ask a
coupl e of questions about that. [I'mtrying to think of

the best way to word this so | don't cause you grief.

A Okay.

Q. For depreciation adjustnents in general, is --
is it your understanding that it's not changing the
initial anmpunts of investnment that will be recovered;
it's -- it's changing the tinetables by which it would
be recovered?

A Correct.

Q Okay. Just wanted to nmake sure it was clear.

And you had nentioned you had perforned
anal ysis where you | ooked at the |likely outcones in
determ ning whether this stipulation was reasonable or
not. In that analysis, to the extent you' re willing to
state, would the range of return on equity and outcone
that you were looking at -- is that simlar to the table
that M. Orton provi ded?

A It would probably be nore simlar to the
attachnment to M. Summer's testinony, where he outlined,

you know, the different parties and our initial
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positions in direct; but, yes, also to M. Oton's table
that he had included in his testinony. Simlar
conparison, you know. You're weighing positions, and
also in the case of those, yes, we were considering what
ot her parties' positions we m ght want to adopt in
rebuttal or support, and so all of that played into our
eval uation of the settled revenue requirenent.
(Reporter clarification.)

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: Thank you. | think that
addresses ny questi ons.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. | don't have any
questions for you, M. Anderson.

Anybody el se have anyt hi ng?

Al right. You may step down. Thank you very

much.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Appreciate it.

M. Russell, let's turn to you.

MR. RUSSELL: Thank you. Before |I call ny
witness, I'd like to ask a clarifying question. Before
we got started, we -- we went around the room

identifying the exhibits and the testinony -- the
prefiled direct testinony that would be adm tted.
don't think we did the same for the testinony that was

filed on October 15th, and | don't think M. Mbore's
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moved for admi ssion of it, although | think he started
to.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: | thought he did before.
| thought he did in his initial --

MR. MOORE: | believe | noved for adm ssion of
that in ny initial --

MR. RUSSELL: Oh, did you? Ckay.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Yeah, | thought he did.

MR. RUSSELL: Okay.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: That's why --

MR. RUSSELL: Okay. All right. He did. None
of the rest of us did. He was ahead of us.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Yeah. That's why |
acqui esced to his statenent.

MR. RUSSELL: Okay. All right. | didn't -- |
didn't want to m ss that.

MR. MOORE: Thank you, M. Russell.

MR. RUSSELL: Yeah.

Ut ah Association of Energy Users calls Justin
Bi eber to the stand.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Thank you.

M. Bieber, welcone.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Wbul d you raise your right

armto the square.
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JUSTI N Bl EBER
was called as a witness, and having been first duly
sworn to tell the truth, testified as foll ows:
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. You may be
seat ed.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR RUSSELL:
Q Good norning, M. Bieber.
A. Good nor ni ng.
Q Can you state and spell your nanme for the
record, please.
A Yes. It's Justin Bieber. That's J-u-s-t-i-n
B-i-e-b-e-r.
Q Thank you. And can you tell us who you work
for and in what capacity.
A. Yes. |I'ma principal for Energy Strategies.
Q And did you file or cause to be filed direct
testinony in Phase | of this proceeding on behal f of
UAE?
A Yes, | did.
Q Did you also participate in settl enent

di scussions on UAE' s behalf regarding Phase | of this

docket ?
A. Yes.
Q Have you reviewed the Settlenment Stipul ation
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t hat has been filed with the Conmm ssion?

A Yes, | have.

Q And on October 15, 2025, did you file or cause
to be filed testinmony in support of the Settl enent
Stipulation | abel ed UAE Exhibit RR 3.07

A. Yes.

Q Wth respect to that testinony, do you have
any corrections to nake?

A No, | do not.

Q. And if asked the same questions today that
were posed in your prefiled settlenment testinony, would
you provide the sane answers?

A Yes, | woul d.

MR. RUSSELL: Okay. |I'll nove for the
adm ssion of M. Bieber's settlenment testinony UAE
Exhi bit RR 3.0.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. W thout objection,
it wll be admtted. It is admtted. Thank you.
(UAE Exhibit RR 3.0 was adnmitted into
evi dence.)
MR. RUSSELL: Thank you.

Q. (BY MR, RUSSELL) M. Bieber, do you appear
here today to support the settlenent as described in
that Settlenment Stipulation?

A. Yes, | do.
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Q Do you believe adoption of the settlenent, as
described in the Settlenment Stipul ation, would be just
and reasonable in result and in the public interest?

A Yes, | do.

Q Have you prepared a sunmmary of your views in
support of the Settlement Stipulation?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Pl ease proceed.

A Good norning. The Phase | settl enent
recommends approval of a Utah jurisdictional
di stribution non-gas revenue requirenment of $604 mllion
but wi thout identifying specific adjustnents. Based on
Enbri dge's proposed current revenues, this revenue
requi renent corresponds to a revenue increase of
$62 mllion.

In Enbridge's direct filing, it requested an
overal |l revenue increase of $114.7 nmillion. This was
subsequently revised based on various corrections to a
$117.9 mllion increase. |In conparison, the adjustnments
that I recommended in ny direct Phase |I testinony would
have resulted in a revenue increase of approxi mtely
$60.5 mllion, measured using Enbridge's current
revenues. The Phase | stipulated revenue requirenent
woul d be very close to the outconme | recomended in ny

direct testinony.
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My settlenment testinony also provides an
exanmpl e of how adjustnments fromthis case would result
in a revenue requirenent increase of $64.2 mllion,
specifically if one were to incorporate the O fice of
Consuner Services' witness David Garrett's depreciation
adj ustnent into the UAE reconmmended revenue requirenent,
utilize Enbridge's proposed capital structure, and
adj ust the allowed ROE to 9.375 percent to match the ROE
t hat was authorized by the Comm ssion in Rocky Mountain
Power's recent general rate case. The resulting revenue
requi rement increase would be $64.2 million measured
usi ng Enbridge's current revenues.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER: Can | interrupt you for
just a second? | just want to know, for the record,
you're referencing lines 49 through 53 of your
settlenment testinony; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: |'m just checking the line
numbers. |'msorry. You said 47 through --

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Well, we can say start at
47 through 53, if that's correct?

THE WTNESS: Yes, that's correct.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Thank you. Sorry
to interrupt you

THE WTNESS: Again, this result is close,

although a little bit greater than the Phase |
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stipulation revenue retirenment.

Il will enphasize that this exanple is intended
to provide illustrative nunbers but not to indicate any
party's acceptance of a specific adjustnment. This is
because the Phase | settlenment only specifies a
stipul ated revenue requirenent. It does not include
acceptance or rejection of any recomended adjustnents
or cost of capital.

Notably, | have also qualified ny statenents
regardi ng the revenue requirenment increase as being
measur ed based on Enbridge's current revenues. This is
due to the fact that UAE w tness Courtney Hi ggins has
recommended an upward adjustnment to Enbridge's current
revenues in her Phase Il testinony. While M. Higgins'
recommended adj ust nent does not change UAE' s recommended
revenue requirenent, it does change the anmobunt of the
i ncrease that would be needed to achi eve that revenue
requirement, reducing it by $1.8 mllion.

If the Comm ssion were to approve the Phase |
settl enent and adopt Ms. Higgins' Phase |, Phase |
revenue adj ustnent, the approved revenue requirenent
woul d remain $604 nmillion, but the rate increase needed
to achieve that target revenue requirenment woul d be
reduced from62 mllion to approximately $60.2 mllion.

Footnote 1 to the Phase | settlenment recogni zes that
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this Phase Il issue regarding current revenues renains
in contention.

In summary, | recommend that the Conmm ssion
approve this Phase | settlenment because it will result
in a revenue requirenent that is just and reasonabl e and
in the public interest. Thank you.

MR. RUSSELL: M. Bieber is available for
cross-exam nati on and Conm ssion questions.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Thank you,

M. Russell.

Thank you, M. Bieber, for your summary
st at ement .

Turn to Ms. C ark.

MS. NELSON CLARK: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Gecu?

MR. GRECU. No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Mbore?

MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Captain Rivera?

CAPT. RIVERA: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  AIl right. Let's turn to
Conmi ssi oner Cl ark.

COW SSI ONER CLARK: | don't have any
questions. Thank you, M. Bieber.

EXAM NATI ON
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BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:

Q. Let nme just ask one -- one question about
the -- on -- I"massumng this is a part of your, quote,
bl ack box, but could you -- do you know the reason that

the revised nodel indicates a revenue deficiency of
117.9 when the original application represented 114.7?
VWhat's the $3.2 mIlion increase?

A There were various errors in the revenue
requi rement nodel that, when corrected, changed the
total revenue requirenment by that anount.

Q Do you renenber, as you're sitting here, what
those errors were?

A. Not specifically. They were addressed in
di scovery.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Al right. So to
t hat extent, the amount that would have been sought
absent of settlenment would have been 117.9 mllion. [|'m
going to ask Ms. Clark if that's -- if that's correct.

MS. NELSON CLARK: If | can have one nonent.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Sure. I mean, | can put
M. Sumrers back on the stand if we want to ask the
question, but | think it's a fairly sinple answer. You
t hi nk you can answer it?

MS. NELSON CLARK: | can, and I think it is a

true statenent that perhaps woul d have been addressed
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more thoroughly had we done rebuttal testinony in this
case.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Right. Okay. All right.
Thank you.

Q (BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER) And then just one
ot her question -- coment. The stipul ated revenue
deficiency based upon the $117.9 nmillion is 47 percent
| ower than that anmount; correct? The settlenent anount
is set 47 percent |lower than the 117.9; is that correct?

A Yes, that's correct.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. All right. Let's
turn to Comm ssi oner Harvey.
EXAM NATI ON
BY COWM SSI ONER HARVEY:

Q Good nor ni ng.

A. Good norni ng.

Q. l"d like to offer you the same opportunity I
gave the previous witnesses. Based on ny interactions
with them do you have any clarifying statenents you'd
i ke to make regarding that -- those?

A No, | don't at this tinme. | think the issues
have been sufficiently clarified.

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: Okay. Thank you. The
thing I want is probably going into specifics of

stipulations. So |I'mnot going to do that. | think
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"1l agree that they've been sufficiently clarified,
"Il pass. Thank you.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Thank you,

M. Bieber. You can step down, unless anybody else h

and

as

any follow up? Thank you for your testinony and summary

today. | appreciate it. You nmay be excused.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  All right. Let's turn
Captain Rivera and see if you want to put M. Gornman
the stand to give us sworn statement summary.

Captain Rivera?

CAPT. RIVERA: Yes, sir. The Federal
Executive Agencies calls M. Mchael Gorman to the
st and.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

THE W TNESS: Good nor ni ng.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. M. Gorman, |'m
going to take your word for this because | can't see
you. WIIl you raise your right armto the square.

M CHAEL P. GORMAN
was called as a witness, and having been first duly
sworn to tell the truth, testified as foll ows:

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Thank you. Appreciate

Okay. Captain Rivera, |I'mgonna turn to yo

CAPT. RIVERA: Thank you.
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY CAPT. RI VERA:

Q M. Gorman, can you introduce yourself for the
record.
A. My nane is Mchael Gorman. [|'m a consultant

with Brubaker & Associates representing the Federal
Executive Agencies in this proceeding. M business
address is 16690 Swi ngley Ridge Road, Chesterfield,
M ssouri .

CAPT. RIVERA: And I would just like to note
for the record that his direct testinmony and exhibits
were entered into the record earlier in this proceeding.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

CAPT. RIVERA: And M. Gorman is available for
cross if anyone wi shes to do so.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. M. Gorman --

CAPT. RIVERA: Sorry. | apologize. Back up.
Sorry. Strike that.

Q. (BY CAPT. RIVERA) M. Gorman, do you have a
summary of your testinony here today?

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: That's what | was going to
ask him-- if he had a summary statenent he wanted to
make.

THE WTNESS: | do, yes. In ny testinony, |

address a fair overall rate of return for the Conpany in
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this proceeding. | provide evidence of a fair overal
rate of return in this case for the Conpany based on a
review of --

(Reporter clarification.)

THE WTNESS: -- a review of the utility's
cost-effective ratemaking capital structure at a fair
return on commmon equity. | reviewed those froma
st andpoi nt of cost necessary to provide the utility fair
conpensation and to maintain financial integrity and
strong credit standing.

| found a fair return on equity for the
Conpany to be in the range of 9.25 percent to
9.8 percent with a return on equity of 9.5 percent. And
| found that the Conpany's request of return on equity
of 10.6 percent was well above market, not just and
reasonabl e, and should not be used to set rates.

| also took issue with the Conpany's proposal
to increase their ratemaking capital structure common
equity component to 53 percent fromthe 51 percent
previously approved for ratenmaking purposes for this
utility.

The evidence | reviewed show that the
Company' s actual capital structure had aligned with the
Comm ssion-aut horized capital structure, and that

capital structure has supported the utility's strong
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credit standing of financial integrity for many years
now. The Conpany's proposal to increase the equity
ratio of 3 percent is not cost effective, and I
recommend the Comm ssion do not approve that ratenaking
capital structure.

That conpl etes ny sunmmary.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Thank you,
M. Gorman.

Captain Rivera, are you ready to submt him
for cross?

CAPT. RIVERA: Yes, sir. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. W have
cross-exam nation of M. Gorman

Ms. Clark?

MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you so much.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. NELSON CLARK:

Q M. Gorman, can you confirmfor the Comm ssion
that the Federal Executive Agencies do not oppose the
Settlenment Stipulation that is being addressed in the
heari ng today?

A. | do confirmthe FEA is not opposing the
sti pul ation.

MS. NELSON CLARK: Thank you. Not hing

further.
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PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. M. Gecu?

MR. GRECU: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Mbore?

MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: M. Russel|?

MR. RUSSELL: No questions. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Commi ssi oner Cl ark?

COW SSI ONER CLARK: | have no questi ons.
Thank you, M. Gornman.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: COkay. Commi ssi oner
Har vey?

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: No questions. Thank
you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. So just for
clarification, the Federal Executive Agencies are not a
signatory to the settlenment. However, as Ms. Clark just
had you state, you're not opposed to the stipulation; is
that correct? You're not a signatory to the settlenent?

THE WTNESS: Sorry, sir. That question was
to me? That is correct.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Yeah, that was to you.

" msorry.

Okay. | don't have any questions. Thank you,

M. Gorman, for your participation renotely, and you can

be excused now. It's up to you whether you want to stay
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on the line or not.

THE W TNESS: Thank you very much

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  All right. Are there any
ot her witnesses or clarifying questions from anybody or
ot her statenents anybody would |ike to make?

Okay. Al right. Now from Commi ssi oner
Clark?

COW SSI ONER CLARK: No. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  Commi ssi oner Harvey?

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: No. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFICER:  AIl right. WelIl, | guess
the question | have is are we ready to indicate whether
we accept the Settlement Stipulation or not? 1|s anybody
ready to indicate now?

Al right. 1'"mjust trying to do this in an
open neeting so that they have clarification on whether
we're going to nove forward or they have to sit there
and worry about whether it's going to be accepted or
not .

Comm ssi oner Cl ark?

COW SSI ONER CLARK: My intention would be to
support an order that accepts the stipulation.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Okay. That's what |I'm
asking for. Yeah.

Conmi ssi oner Harvey?
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COVWM SS|I ONER HARVEY: | would -- | would feel

li kewi se to Conmm ssi oner C ark.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. I'mgoing to -- |I'm
going to make a statenment. | don't |ike black box
settlenments. All right? | think that they put the

Commi ssion in a position where we don't have all of the
information. We rely upon you, which is, | think, fine
to do, because you are representing various interests
t hat should cover the spectrum of interested parties.

| view Rule 904 [sic - 408] settlenent
negoti ations to be privileged. [|'mnot going to go down
this path with you in this proceeding, but |I'mjust
going to note for the record that |'ve got concerns
about bl ack box settlenments where the Commi ssion is not
given all of the details of the ternms of the settlenent.
| think they can be filed subject to highly sensitive

confidential order where the Conmm ssion would have the

information that was the basis of the -- of the parties
deci si on-maki ng. | understand the concern, however --
the countervailing concern of the chilling effect that

t hat coul d perhaps have on settlenent negotiations. |
thi nk those are sonmewhat obviated by the fact of a
confidential filing, essentially under seal as highly
confidential, to be reviewed by the Conm ssion only.

But having said that, ny viewpoint is at this
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point in tinme to reject the stipulation on the basis of
wanting nore informati on and nore detail -- I'm
satisfied, I think, in result. That's the operative

| anguage of the statute, that it is just and reasonabl e,
and 1'll support also an order of the Comm ssion
affirm ng the settlenment agreenent, which we'll issue as
soon as we -- as we can.

It's nmy understanding that -- but, just so you
know, for future reference, | have some concerns about
the concept of the black box settlement because | think
that, ultimtely, we have the responsibility of
determ ning whether the settlenent is just and
reasonable and in the public interest. And I'm
concerned a little bit that that hanpers -- doesn't -- |
think in this case it's not a fatal flaw because |I'm
still convinced based upon the testinmony that | heard
that was filed in advance that the result is just and
reasonabl e -- because you can interpret this various
ways. Wth respect to what the total increase of
$62 mllion represents and the fact that the conmponents
are not conpletely disclosed, it does support varying
interpretations. But at the end of the day, it's -- it
is a significant reduction from what the Conpany
originally sought and that they've been willing to

stipulate to. So appreciate that.
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So just one other question w thout asking for
the disclosure of -- of any information. 1'Ill just
state ny understanding. M understanding is that there
are no current Phase Il settlenent negotiations that are
expected to bring fruition and that we should be
prepared to go to hearing on Phase Il in -- | think it's

Novenber 19th. Is that it, Melissa? Doing that off of

ny --

THE CLERK: Yes.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: -- from nenory. All
right. 1Is that -- is that accurate?

THE CLERK: It's the 18t h.

MS. NELSON CLARK: That is correct.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER:  18th. Okay. Well, | was
close. | was giving nyself an extra day.

All right. Oay. So all right. So we'l
pl an on seeing everybody back here for the 18th.

| guess |I'm not sure whether -- based upon the
statenments we nade today -- whether we need to issue a
separate order on Phase | before we issue just a final
order in the entire case. | think we've given you the
assurance that we're not going to bl ow up your
settlenent. Okay? But we probably -- | can be
persuaded differently if the other comm ssioners

di sagree with that, but | think at this point in tine,
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we' ||l probably just issue one order.

Does that seem okay to you?

COW SSI ONER CLARK: Yeah, that's acceptable

to me.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Well, this was a
| ot of fun today. We'Il -- we appreciate everybody
being here -- being here in a professional way which you

conducted this hearing, the w tnesses and counsel, and

we'll see you all on the 18th of Novenber.
You may be excused. Thank you.
(This hearing was concl uded at

10: 58 a.m MI.)

* * * * *
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE
STATE OF UTAH )
)
COUNTY OF UTAH )

|, BROOKE SI MMS, an ldaho Certified Shorthand
Reporter, Utah State Certified Court Reporter, and
Regi stered Professional Reporter, hereby certify:

THAT the foregoing proceedi ngs were taken
before nme at the tinme and place set forth in the caption
hereof; that the proceedings were taken down by nme in
shorthand and thereafter ny notes were transcri bed
t hrough conputer-aided transcription; and the foregoing
transcript constitutes a full, true, and accurate record
of such oral proceedings had, and of the whol e thereof.

| further certify that | amnot a relative or
enpl oyee of an attorney or party, nor am| financially
interested in the action.

| have subscribed ny name on this
10t h day of Novenber. 2025.

Brooke Sims, RPR, CCR, CSR

| daho CSR No. 1174
Utah CCR No. 12335391-780
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